
 
 

 

Queries about the agenda?  Need a different format? 
 

Contact James Clapson – Tel: 01303 853764 
Email: committee@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk or download from our 

website 
www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk 

 

Date of Publication: 8.3.2023 

 

Agenda 
 

Meeting: Folkestone & Hythe District and Parish Councils' Joint 
Committee 

Date: 16 March 2023 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Place: Remote Meeting 

  

To: All members of the Folkestone & Hythe District and Parish 
Councils Joint Committee 
 

 The committee will consider the matters listed below at the date, time 
shown above. The meeting is open to the press and public and will be 
streamed live at bit.ly/YouTubeMeetings 
 
Members of the committee who wish to have information on any matter 
arising on the agenda which is not fully covered in these papers are 
requested to give notice prior to the meeting to the Chairman or 
appropriate officer. 
 

1.   Appointment of chairman  
 

 The chairmanship alternates between a District Councillor and a 
Parish/Town Councillor every meeting.  The Committee must appoint a 
District Councillor as the Chairman of this meeting. 
 

2.   Apologies for absence  
 

3.   Declarations of interest (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

 Members of the Council should declare any interests which fall under the 
following categories: 
 
a) discloseable pecuniary interests (DPI) 
b) other significant interests (OSI) 
c) voluntary announcements of other interests 
 

4.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 8) 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:committee@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk
http://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/
https://bit.ly/YouTubeMeetings


Folkestone & Hythe District and Parish Councils' Joint Committee - 16 March 2023 

 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2023. 

 
5.   Kent County Council Consultation Regarding Changes to Community 

Services  
 

 Kent County Council Officers Rebecca Spore, Director of Infrastructure, 
and Ben Sherreard, Kent Communities Programme Manager will provide 
an update on the ongoing consultation regarding changes to Community 
Services. 
 

6.   An update on the Ship Street Development  
 

 A presentation will be provided by Andy Blaszkowicz, Director of Housing 
and Operations, giving an update on the latest position of the development 
at Ship Street, Folkestone.  
 

7.   Coast Drive Coastal Destination Project  
 

 A presentation will be provided by Andy Blaszkowicz, Director of Housing 
and Operations, giving an update on the Coast Drive Coastal Destination 
Project. 
 

 
 

Page 2



Declarations of Interest 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
 
Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must 
disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance 
that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The  
Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any 
matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 
vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to 
do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a 
DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any 
dispensations, withdraw from the meeting. 
 
Other Significant Interest (OSI) 
 
Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the 
nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the 
commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and 
must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 
granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are 
permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 
evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the 
same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote 
taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's 
procedure rules. 
 
Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI) 
 
Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for 
transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter 
under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at 
the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration. 
 
Note to the Code: 
Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside 
bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person 
involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would 
affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her 
financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a 
Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, 
relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in 
some cases a DPI. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Minutes 
 

 

Folkestone & Hythe District and Parish 
Councils' Joint Committee 
 
Held at: Remote Meeting 
  
Date Thursday, 19 January 2023 
  
Present Councillors Graham Allison, Roger Joyce, 

Terence Mullard and Paul Thomas 
  
Apologies for Absence Councillors Laszlo Dudas and Martin Sweeney 
  
Officers Present:  James Clapson (Case Officer (Committee)), Charlotte 

Spendley (Director of Corporate Services) and Adrian 
Tofts (Strategy, Policy & Performance Lead Specialist) 

  
  

 
 

1. Appointment of chairman 
 
Town Councillor Paul Thomas was appointed Chairman for the meeting. 
 

2. Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2022 were submitted and 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

4. Changes to National Planning Policy and the Levelling-up and 
Regeneration Bill 
 
Mr Tofts provided the Committee with an update on the recent changes to 
National Planning Policy, and the Levelling-up and Regeneration Bill.  The 
presentation slides have been attached to the minutes for reference. 
 
During the presentation, it was noted that: 

 Consultation was currently underway on the ‘Levelling-up and 
Regeneration Bill: reforms to national planning policy’.  The consultation 
period ran until 2 March and interested parish and town councils could 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Folkestone & Hythe District and Parish Councils' Joint Committee - 19 January 
2023 

 
 

 
 

 
 

access the consultation documents through the link: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/levelling-up-and-
regeneration-bill-reforms-to-national-planning-policy 

 Only 40% of local authorities had an up-to-date (5 years old or less) local 
plan in place.  There were proposals to simplify and speed up the local 
plan process.  Reforms were targeted for implementation towards the 
end of 2024. 

 Folkestone & Hythe District Council had an up-to-date local plan that was 
adopted in 2020, so under the new proposals, it would not need to 
demonstrate a five-year housing supply; however, the housing delivery 
test remained in place, therefore the system would remain fundamentally 
unchanged. 

 There were no proposed changes to the method for calculating housing 
numbers, however national housing figures were to become an ‘advisory 
starting point for establishing a housing requirement’.  It was unclear 
exactly this phase would mean in practice. 

 The Government still had a target to build 300,000 new homes a year 
across the country by the mid-2020s. 

 Previously raised questions such as how to speed up development on 
sites, or how to consider applications from applicants who have a history 
of breaching planning conditions, remained unanswered. 

 There would be further consultation to come on the National Planning 
Policy Framework, and consultation on a new Infrastructure Levy. 

 Cabinet would consider the Council’s response to the consultation when 
it met on 22 February.  

 
During consideration of the item, the following points were noted: 

 There had been a lot of campaigning for more localism in the Levelling 
Up Bill, however this seems to have had little impact so far. 

 The Government indicated that the local plan should be renewed every 
five years. 

 It was becoming harder for the Council to demonstrate a secure housing 
supply, as the required number of houses to be delivered had increased 
significantly.  

 Some windfall sites were included in the supply calculation, based on 
previous rates of delivery.  

 Parish and Town Councils could contribute to consultation response from 
the Kent Association of Local Councils’ Planning Advisory Committee. 

 
5. Budget Strategy and Draft General Fund Budget 2023/24 

 
Mrs Spendley updated the Committee about the Council’s Draft General Fund 
Budget for 2023/24 and the Budget Strategy. 
 
During the update the following points were noted: 

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy was reviewed each year.  It was 
adopted by Full Council in November and showed a significant budget 
deficit over the medium term.  

Page 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/levelling-up-and-regeneration-bill-reforms-to-national-planning-policy
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/levelling-up-and-regeneration-bill-reforms-to-national-planning-policy


Folkestone & Hythe District and Parish Councils' Joint Committee - 19 January 
2023 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 The draft General Fund Budget 2023/24 initially had a shortfall of 
£4.286millon, the Council’s strategy to reduce this gap had the following 
strands: 

o A review of the Council’s Fees and Charges 
o A curtailment of all non-essential spending. 
o To refocus the priorities of the Council, such as re-phasing work in 

recognition of the current financial and capacity challenges faced 
by the Council. 

o A wholistic review of services to identify any possible efficiencies. 
o To continue with strategic investments, such as the Otterpool Park 

project. 
o To undertake a review of the Council’s reserves. 
o To maximise opportunities such as remaining in initiatives like the 

business rates pool; and to continue to apply for funding for 
enhancements such as the levelling up fund. 

 The 2022/23 quarter three budget monitoring position showed that 
£570,000 of savings had been made without impact on the provision of 
front-line services.  

 The provisional local government settlement was announced in 
December and offered the Council around £1.7million of funding. 
Additionally, the Council could increase Council Tax by up to 2.99% 
without triggering a referendum, this limit had increased from 1.99%.    

 The draft Budget that would be considered by Cabinet on 26 January 
2023, now showed a budget deficit of just over £2million.  Full Council 
would meet on 23 February 2023 to agree the budget and council tax 
rates for the 2023/24 year. 

 It was likely that the Council would need to use its reserve funds to help 
close some of the remaining budget gap. 

 The budget consultation period started in December and would run until 
the start of February, people could participate using the following link: 
Budget consultation 2023-2024 - Folkestone & Hythe District Council 
(folkestone-hythe.gov.uk)   

 Members offered their thanks for the budget report, noting that it was 
straight forward and easy to understand. 

 

Page 7

https://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/consultations/budgetconsultation2023-2024
https://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/consultations/budgetconsultation2023-2024


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of interest
	4 Minutes

